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Session With A.P. Ma

Following is a transcript of
President Nixon's news, con-
ference -with the Associated
Press Xanaging Editors Asso-
ciction in Orlanco, Fla., last

“géverything that I possibly can
to. provide the evidence that
would have existed had we
found the tapes..

did you apparently delay for
a-matter of weeks disclosing
this -matter to the Federal
Court and to the public?

:A. Well, the first time that
the fact that there were no

.. First, - with regard‘t(') the .

“the first quastion. Mr. Quinm

lic can_survive.,

“itanes ¢id not exist, and why

night, cs- recorded by. The

recordings of the conversa-
New York Times: . ;

tions to which you referred,

that they did not exist, came

to-my attention on approxi-

rgatelyﬁept; 2% or Sept. the
0. 4.5 o E

° Président Quinn and ladies
and geatlemen, ‘when Jack
Horner, who has been a cor-
respendent ‘in’ Washington
and other places around the
world retired after 40 years,
he once toild ‘me that'if 1}
thought that the White House
press corps asked tough ques-
tions, he should- hear the’
kind of guestions the manag-
ing editors “ask himi:: # 77

formed only that they might
not exist, because a search
was not made because seven
of the nine recordings re-
quested did-exist, and my
secretary; listening to them
for me and:making notes for
me, -proceeded to go through
those seven tapes. - "¢ =’

1 should point out inciden-

tally that the ‘two which did
not exist and- which there
were ‘ho tape recordings of
the conversations were not
.ones' that were requested by

- the * Senate *committee, and
consequently we- felt that'we
should . go: forward with- the
ones that were requested by
both the Senate committee
and the others. - -

~When we finally deter-

‘mined -that they could not-be
in existence was on Oct. the
26. of this year. And- we
learned it then when I di-
rected the White House coun-
sek Mr. Buzhardt, to question
the Secret Service operatives
as’to what had happened to
make sure that there’ might
not be a possibility that due
to the fact that the mechan-
ism ‘was not operating prop-
erly that we might find them

| in some’ other place. = .

i “He: questioned them for
two -days " and “reported -on
the 27th -that he could not
find them. =" 7 T

i~ He, then, having had 'a

Jdate made, and he asked for
the date sooner, which Judge

Sirica_he asked fora date
on Thursday—you may re-
call I pointed that out in"my
press _conference’  on _the

Consaguently, 1 welcome’
this opportunity tonight to,
meet with the managing edi- |
tors of the nation’s news- -
papers. I will' not have an’
opening staterment because I-
know with 400 of you it will
be hard to get’ through all
the’ guestions you haye, and
1 uncerstand the président
has tha prerogative of asking -

MR. QUINN: Mr. President,
this morning Governor Askew.
of Florida addressed . this
group and recalled the words
of Benjamin Franklin. When
leaving the constitutional’
convention~ he . was asked:
*“What have you given' us, |
sir, a monarch or a repub--
lic?” Franklin answered: “A
repubiic, sir, if you can keep
it.” Mr. President, in the pre-
vailing pessimism of the lin-
gerinz matter we call Water-
gate, can we keep 'that Re-
public, sir, and how?

A. Well, Mr. Quinn, I would
cerainly not be standing here
answaring these questions
unless 1 had a firm belief
that we could keep the Re-
public, that we must keep it,
not only for ourselves but:
for the whole world. 1 recog-
nize that because of mistakes
that were made, and I must |
take responsibility for those 1

mistakss, whether in  the ! 26th—Judge Sirica saw_ him
campaign or during the | on Tuesday in camera. The

course of an -Administration,
that there are those .who
wonder whether this Repub-

# White House, counsel. re-

But I also know that the ‘it.
hopes of the whole world for | .
peace, not only now but in
the years to come, rests in
the United States of America.

‘It’s a Big Job”

And I can assure you that
as lonz as 1 am physically
2ble “to handle the position
to which I was elected and
then re-elected :last Novem-

Judge’s Decision
" The judge decided, and I

i
1
| feasons for the tapes mot
| existing should be made pub-
! fic and those involved -with
" access to the tapes and those
who operated the machines
. should be questiongd so that
there would. be no question
ber I 2m going to work for | of the White House, some-
the cause of peace in the ' body around the President or
world, for the cause of pros- | EVER the President himself
perity without war and with- | having destroyed evidence
out iaflation at home, and . that was important,
also to the best of my ability
to restore corfidence in the

At that time 1 was in- -

 ported to Judge Sirica that
"the two tapes did not exist |
| then gave him the reason for !

think quite properly, that the

even
though the Senate ocmmittee
had not, as 1 have already

-tape of June 20. As-you may °
-.recall; it was a five-minute .
telephone -conversation with |
‘the former Attorney General,
John Mitchell, who had just |
left as campalgn manager or .;
i was planning to leave as
campaign ‘manager at' that”
time. s = 0 S B il
«» Irhave a:practice of keep-~
ing ‘a personal diary. I can
~assure you, not every “day. |
“Sométimes you'ré-too tired
:‘at the end of a day to’either |
‘make notes or to dictate ‘it
" into a Dictabelt. On that par-"|
ticutar ‘day,” I happened to '
‘have * dictated “a Dictabelt.
‘And on the Dictabelt for '
June 20 which 1 found, I-
found that I had referred to |
the conversation ‘to John !
Mitchell, and I thnik it’s fair |
" to discolse to this audience |
what was there, because it °
will be disclosed to the
_court, it’s already been of-
" fered to the court, and even-
tually I assume, would be ’
made.publicsi 2y oo
_ It said, first, that I called
‘John Mitchell to. cheer him t
“up because 1 knew he was
terribly . disheartened. by -
% what had happened in the
|- so-called Watergate matter. |
Second, he expressed cha- .
grin to me that the organi- |
zation over which he had !
- control - could have- gotten !
out of hand in this way.
:* That was .what .was, on °

1

Fhatitapa. = & @ iR
Now turning to the one

on April 15. I.thought that I .

might have .a Dictabelt of

that conversation as well. .

Let ‘me tell you first why ..

| this one—the telephone con-

i versation was not recorded.

| ‘Not because of any deliber-

ate attempt to .keep.the re- - -

| “cording from the public, but

‘| because the only telephones

in thé residence of the White
House: which "are recorded—
the only. telephone, there is
only one, is the one-thatis
in the office, the little Lin- |
\ coln sitting room, you know, |
| right off.of the Lincoln bed-
' room. The .call I made to
i John,Mitchell was made at
the end of the day-at about |
6:30.just before going into
dinner, from the family quar- 3
. ters, and no telephones in
 the family. .quarters ever!
were recorded. . Se et
That’s why the recording
did not exist... o I :

Long Conversations ™,

. Turning to April. 15, the
.conversation referred - to:
i there was at the end of the
i process in which Mr. Dean i

{ came in to tell me what he

White House and in the Pres- | pointed  out, subpoenaed | had told the U. S. Attorneys f
ident nimself. It's 2 big job ‘ either of these two tapes. | that day. He saw me at Qe
Bt T think it can be doneand | And since we're on this o'clock ~ at night, Sunday
1 intend to do it. - subject and I do not want to night. There should have

Q. Mr. President, P'm George
Gill of Tha Tonisvilla Conriar-
Journal. Woul you please tell
us, sir, when did you person-
ally discover that two of the
nine subpoenaed White House

it exrent that T Linaur

_be taking all of the time on
~is going to be enormous in-
terest in it, not only among
this audience here but among
our television viewers, let me
! point this .out: I. have done.

been a racording. Everybody
thanght thara \:\rnhnhly waq
a recording. The reason there
wasn't a recording is that
the tape machines over’ the -
weekend only can carry six !
hours of conversation _and ;-
usually that’s  more than ¢

. just the tapes: .-

Dictabelt, What I found.was

. counsel toturn thase notes

‘authenticity. nd I understand

enough, because I do not use
the E.O.B, .office—that’s the
little, that’s -the Executive.
Office Building _ rather. than
the Oval Office over the
weekend to that extent. =
That weekend I was in the
E.OB. for a long conversa-
tion with Dr. Kissinger on
foreign policy matters. T was
there for two other hours, or
two or. three -pther. hours,
and the tape ran out in the
middle of a conversation with
Mr. Kleindienst in the middle
of . the . afternoon..Sunday
afternoon. S
. And a later conversation 1
had,.the rest of Kleindients’s
conversation, a-later conver-
sation .I had also with Mr.
Petersen .and .the conversa- -
tion. at_9. o’clock . at night !
with Mr..Dean was not.there. |
%o I've tried to find.what--
ever recordings, whatever rec: -
ord that would help the pro-
secutor. in this instance to re-
construct’.the evidence. Be: -
cause it. was the 'evidence
that he was.after and not

_ What I found .was not a |

my handwritten notes made
at the time of.-the conversa-
tion. I have turned those over
to,. or have authorized. my

over to the judge so.that he-
can have them checked for-

there are ways that he.can |

tell that they were written

at that. time.:" S
Diffienlt to Exn¥n

. Those_handwritten notes :

are available. And then I did !

- one other thing which I think '
-will also be helpful. The next *

dav I had a conversation !
with Mr. Dean in the morn- i
ing at 10 o’clock. That con- |
versation was recorded, and °
in that conversation there are -
repeated, references to. what !
was said the night before. - !
And when compared with | - -
my. handwritten notes’ it is :
clear that we are discussing
the same subjects. - . .
_ That entire tape as well as
the conversation I had in the
afternoon with Mr. Dean for
about 20 . minutes will be
made available to the court ,
even though the-court- has !
not subpoenaed it. %o
And I would just simply
say in conclusion, you can
-be very sure that this kind
of a subject is one that is a
difficult one to éxplain. It ap- .
pears that it’s impossible -
that when we have an Apollo
system that we could have’
two missing tapes when the
White House is cbncerned.
. Let me explain for one
moment what the system ;
was. :
This is no Apollo system. I
found that it cost, and I just
learned this, $2,500. I found
that instead of having the
kind of equipment that was
there when President John- . AN
son was. there, which was, - Ceh
incidentally, =~much better =
equipment, but I found that >,
as far—and I'm not saying 3}
IS
i

A

that critically—but I found
in this instance it was a
Sony, a little Sony that they
had, and that what they had '




(
\
\

_ing.

e these hittle Iapel mikes in
&yt &
y &3 a ‘result, the ‘con-
versations in the oval office,
the conversations in thé Cab-
et room and particularly
in the "E.O.B.—those
three rooms, only
e rooms, were they
, for example, the
\Western White House had no
recording eqiipment and my
house in Key Biscayne had
Tion2. z ‘ b *
But as far as those partic-
ular recordings are con-
cerned, the reason that
you've heard that there are
c¢ifficulties in hearing them
is that the system itself was

- not a sophisticated system.
. I don’t mean to Suggest by
that that the judge by listen-
ing to them will not be able

" to g=t the facts, and I wauld
simply concludé by, saying

, this: I think I know what is
on these tapes from having
listened to some, those be-
fore March 21, and also from
“having seen, from my secre-
tary’s notes the highlights of
others, and I can assure you
that those tapes when they

- are presented to the judge—
and I hope eventually to the
grand jury—and 1 trust in
some way we can find a way

°© at least to get the substance
to the American people they
will prove these things with-
out question: 1, that I had no
knowledge whatever of the

i

. Watergate break-in before it

occurred. 2, that I never au-
therized the offer of c¢lemn-
- ¢y to anybody and as ‘a:
matter of fact turned it down

w er i ested.

/" Tt_was not recommended by:

any member of my staff, but
it was on occasion suggested
as a result of news._reports
that clemency might become
&-factor, - : e s

And third, that as far as
any " knowledge with régard
to hie payment of blackmail
money, which as you recall
was the charge that was
made that Mr. Hunt’s attor-
ney had asked for $120,000,
in money to be paid to him
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you tell us your perscnal re-
laction and your political re-
action—and within that word i

the American people—your
reaction to the discovery that !
the Dean .and Mitchell tapes
did: not exist? )
A. Well, my personal re-
action was one of very great
disappointment, - because I

wanted the evidence out, and =
I knew that when there was :

any indication that something
didn’t exist, immediately there :
would be the impression that
some way either the Presi-
dent or, more likely perhaps,
somebody on the President’s
staff, knew there was some-
thing on those tapes that it
wouldn’t be wise to get out.

But let me point out again, :

while I was disappointed, let
me say I would have been a

lot more disappointed if the -

tapes that had been consid-

ered important by both Mr. :

Cox, the special prosecutor,
‘and the Ervin,committee, if
any one of those had been
missing, because I should
point out the tape of Sept. 15
when, as you recall it has
been testified that I was first
informed -that there was a
;cover-up, that, of course, is

there: . .<

where it has been testified, as
I pointed out in the answer
to The Louisville Courier
Journal, where it has been
testified that I was informed
then of the demands for
money for purposes of black-
mail—that is available. "And
the tape of March 21, where
we discussed this in great
detail, as well as three other
tapes in which Mr. Dean par-
ticipated, three other cenver-

or h= would tell things about -

members of hte White House
staif—not about Watergate
—that might be embarrass-
Testimony" had been
given before the Senate com-
mittee that ‘T was told that
before.the 21st of March, ac-
tually told it on the 13th of
March. I know I heard it for
the first time on the 21st of
March, and I will-reveal this
much of the conversation;
Tm sure the judge wouldn’t
mind. T <

I recall very well Mr. Dean
after the conversation began
telling me, “Mr. President,
there are some things abouf
this I. haven't told you. “I
think  you should ~ know
them.” And then he proceed-
ed then for the first time to
tell me about that money.

‘Some Will Wonder’

Now I realize that some
will wonder about the. truth
of these particular statements
that I've made. I'm going to
kand out later—I won’t hand

them out, but I'll have one of -

your executives  hand .out—
my May 22 statement, .my
August 15 statement and one
with regard to these two
tapes.

You can believe them if

you want. I can’tell you it is
the truth, because I have
lisiened to or have had
Ruowictze vl {10m someone
I have : in as to
what is in the tapes. ;

Q. Mr. Prssident, Richard

rnnfidancn
canfedensa

Tuttle, Damocrat and Chron- |

icle. Rachester, N. Y. Could

- ment, and I just wish we'd !

sations, are all available,

" But as far as these two
tapes are concerned, even
though they were not con-
sidered by the Ervin com-
mittee to be art indispensable
part of their .investigation,
the fact that they were not
there was a great disappoint-

had a better system. 1
frankly wish we hadn’t had
a system at all, then "I
wouldn’t have to answer this
question. - ‘

~ Q. Mr. President, did you 1
tell Mr. Cox to stay out of
the Ellsberg case, and if you
did, why? -And do you think
that the new- special prose-
cutor should be kept from
investigating - the Elisberg
case? :

I mean your credibility with |

. year 1971. I may have met

The tape of March 13, |

$
4

sonally satisfized, sir, that the’
investigation of the Water-
gate matter is complete to

your satisfaction, and if so, |
could you tell us what your |
plans are to tell the Ameri-;
can people about the facts of | -
the case in, ‘
to your credibility on this
matter? :
A, Well first, with regard |
to whether the investigation
is' complete. As you know, !
“there is now a new special ;
“prosecutor, Mr. Jaworski. He
‘is a Democrat. He has al-
ways supported the Demo-
cratic ticket. He is a highly
respected lawyer, a fgrmer
president of the A.B.A. in the

him. I have never talked to
~ him personally and certainly
“have never talked to him
about this matter. -I refuse
to because I want him to be
“ completely independent. |
He cannot be removed un- "’
- less there is a consensus of
~the top leadership of both
ithe House and the Senate,
Democrat and Republican.
The Speaker and the major-
ity and minority leader, of
the House and the president
pro tem and majority and
minority leader in the Sen-
ate and the ranking two
- members of- the Judiciary
Committees of both ihe -
House and the Senate, which
incidentally gives you, as you :
 can ‘see, a very substantial.

_crats are concerned. - .,
- Three Points Made **_

I'm trying to.makeis, one,
he is qualified; two, he is-
independent and will have
_cooperation, - and’ three, he!
will not be removed unless:
the Congress, particularly the
‘leaders of the Congress and:
particularly the Democratic;
leaders who have a strong:
- majority on this group that.
I have named; agree that hel
 should remove and I do not -
expect that that time will-
come. . SRy -
“<As to what I can tell the
. American people, this is one
forum and there may be

tion is, as to when it can be
-done, it is of course neces-
sary to let ‘the grand jury

sible to a conclusion.
And I should point out to
you, as you may recall, Mr..
- Petersen testified before the
Ervin committee that when

A. I have never spoken to
Mr. Cox at all. As a matter |

_ of fact, however, I did talk:

‘to Mr. Petersen about it be-!
fore Mr. Cox took over. And |

1 told Mr. Petersen that the’
job that he had—and I would |
have said the same thing to
Mr. Cox—was to investigate

the Watergate matter. That -

national security matters
were not matters that should
be investigated because there
were some highly sensitive-
matters involved not only in

Ellsberg, but also another .

matter so-sensitive that even

Senator Ervin and Senator

Bacon—Baker—had decided
that they should not delve
further into them.

1 don’t mean by that that
we're going to throw the
clodk of national security
over something because we're
guilty of something. I'm sim-
ply saying that where the

_national security would be |

dissetved by liaviag an iwcs-

tigation, the Pragident has

the responsibility to protect ..

it and I'm going to do so.
Q. Paul Poorman from the
etroit News. Are you per-

he was removed from his
position—you recall he was
removed in April when the
special prosecutor was put
.- in—that the case was 90 per

cent ready. For six months .

under the special prosecutor

who was then appointed the
.~ case has not been brought
‘. to a conclusion.

Time for Conclusion

And 1 think that now,
after six months of delay, it’s
time that the case be brought
to a conclusion. If it was 90
per cent finished in April,
they ought to be able to
finish it now. Those who are
guilty or presumed to be
guilty should be indicted;
those who are not guilty at
least should get some evid-
ence of being cleared.

Because in the meantime,
the reputations of men—
some maybe who are not
guiltv—have been probably
irreparably damaged by what
has happenad in the hearings
that they've appeared betore
| publicly.

1 They’'ve already been con-
i victed and they may never

with regard,’

majority as far as the Demo-. they have appeared- before

" the grand jury before;, they
; . ~‘will be appearing again, and
The second point, the point - ) gut in
_ to an earlier question, it prob-

- ence, unfortunately, ‘whether

‘others. As to what the situa- -

-proceed as quickly as pos-

recover. Anda tnat 1sn't our ;
system of government. The |
place to try a man or a'!

-woman for a crime is in the

courts and not to convict him
either in the newspapers or
.on_television before -he has |
‘a fair trial in the courts. !
Q. Mr. President, I'm Bob
Heyman from The St, Peters-
burg Times in St. Petersburg, '
Fla. Mr. President, when Mr. :
Ehrlichman and Mr. Halde- !
man left your Administration
you said they were guiltless
in the Watergate affair and !
they were “two of the finest !
public servants you’d ever :
known.” After what has
transpired and been revealed .
since then, do you still feel
the same way about both .
men and both statements? !
A. First, I hold that both

men and others who have |

been charged are guilty until
I have evidence that - they
are not guilty [Mr. Nixon
misspoke here—he meant the |
reverse] and I know that }
every newspaperman anhd |
newspaper woman ‘in - this !
whole audience would agree
with that statement. That is
our American system. Sec-
ond, Mr. Haldeman and Mr.
Ehrlichman have ‘been and.
were dedicated, fine public
servants, and I’ believe—it -
is my belief—based on what

“I-know. now that Wwhen these |

proceedings - are Completed |
that they will come out all
tight. On . the  other hand,

as-1 pointed gut in answer

_ably-doesn’t make any differ-

the grand jury indicts them
or - not, --whether they . are
tried -or not, because ur-
fortunately, they’ve -already i
been convicted in the minds
of millions of Americans by
what happened before . a’
Senate committee.. % | -
Q. Yes, at-the-tim

e—this
is Ed Hines. from. The Des !
Motines Register and Tribune |
—at the time you gave® Egil |
Krogh approval for the Dr.
Ellsberg project, was. there
any discussion of legality or
illegality in that situation?

"A. I thing, sir, that® you:
have made an assumption:
that "Mr. Krogh-and others|

- have not testified to, and;

I'm not saying that critically, ;
but I think I do remember .
- what the evidence is. I don’t ;
think Mr. Krogh has said, or
Mr. Ehrlichman, or anybody !
else, that I specifically ap- !
proved or ordered the en-
trance into Dr. Ellsberg’s psy-:
chiatrist’s' office. ey
As a matter of fact, on-the
other hand, I learned of that -
“for the first time on the 17th
of March, which I have stated
in my Aug. 15 statement,
which wil Ibe available to
members of the press when
this meeting is concluded.
Second, with regard to
- such activities, I personally
thought it was a stupid thing
to do, apart from being an
illegal thing to do.c..- = -
"And, third, I should also’
point out that in this particu-
lar matter, the reason that
Mr. Krogh and others were
- engaged in what we call the
Plumbers operation, was be-
cause of our concern at that
time about leaks out of our
Government — the Pentagon
papers which, as;you recaii,’
what Ellsberg was all about
— as well as other leaks
which were seriously damag-
ing to the national security,
including one that I have
pointed out that was so seri-
ous that even Senator Ervin
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and Senator Baker agree that
it should not be disclosed,
and that's what they were
working on. 6 o
I guess we"go to the right
this time. &

Q. Phil Engow The Provi-
dence Evening Bulletin. The
Journal Bulletin on Oct. 3

» reported that you paid $792
in Federal income  tax in
1870 and $87S in 1971. Are
these figures accurate and
would you tell us your views
cn whether elected officials
‘should disclose their personal
finances?

A. Well the answer to the
second question is, I have dis-
closed my personal finances.
And an audit of my personal
finances will be made avail-
able at the end of this meet-
ing  because, = obviously,

you're all so busy that when

* these things come across
your desk, maybe you don’t
see them. ;

I can simply point out

that that audit was — I

paid for ... . I haven’t got
the bill yet, but I know that
it’s several thousands -of
dollars, and I think that that
audit is one that is a pretty
good one. That audit, how-

ever, deals with the acquisi- |

tion of my property and
knocks down some of the

ideas that haveé been around. |

But since this question has
been raised, let me, sir, try
to respond to'it as fully as I
can. )

I paid $79,000 in income
tax in 1969. In the next
two years I paid nominal
amounts.

-I do not know because I
“haven’t looked at my returns,

and obviously the Providence .

Journal’'s got. much better
sources than I have to find
such returns.

And I congratﬁlate_ you,’
. sir, for having such a lively

staff. . -
Paper Deducted

Now why did I pay this
amount? It wasn’t because of
the deductions for- shall we
‘say a cattle ranch or interest
or you know all these gim-
micks that you’ve got where
you can deduct from—which.
most of you know about, ’'m

sure. If you don’t, your pub-,

lishers do!
was this:

But the reason
Lyndon - Johnson

came in to see me shortly .

.after T became President. He
told me that he had given
his Presidential papers—or at i
least mos’ tof them—to the
Government.* i
He told me that under the
law, up until 1969, Presiden-
tial or Vice-Presidential pa- !
pers given to the Government
were a deduction and should .
be taken and.could be taken
as a deduction from the tax, !
And. he said,: “You, -Mr: "
President, ought to-do the
same thing.” “I don’t .have
any Presidential papers.” He
said, “You've got your Vice-
Presidential papers.” -And I
thought of that-a moment, :
and I said, “Alil .right, ']
turn them over fo the tax
people.” I turned them over.
They found they were—the
appraised them at $500,000. -
.- I suppose some wonder
how could the Vice Presi-.
dent’s papers b2 worth that? :
Well, I was, shall we say, a:!
rather active Vice President. |
All of my personal notes, in-.
cluding matters that have not |
pecaligatoradlinl o ho o
which I don’t- edvise- other !
people to -write, but: in-any -
event I wrote one and I will
stand by it—all of my papers -
on the Hiss case, on the fa-

mous . fund  controversy in |

| 1952, on President Eisenhow-
er’s heart attack, on Presi-,
den Eisenhower’s stroke, on
my visit to Caracas when I
i had a few problems in 1968,
and on my visit with Khru-
shchev—all of those papers,
all of my notes were valued,
many believe conservatively,
at that amount. -~

And so the tax people who
prepared it, prepared the re
turn and took that as a de-
duction. Now no question has
been raised by’ the Internal
Revenue about it, but if they
do, let me-tel] you this, T'll !
be glad to have- the papers '
back-and Y'll pay the tax, be- |
cause I think they’re worth
more than that. i

I can only say that we did
what we were told was the
right thing to-do and of
course what President John- |
son had done befaore and that |
doesn’t’ prove certainly that |
it"was wrong becduse he had
done exactly what the law
cregiredas ™ SRR o
¢ Since 1969, of course;, T
-$hould point out, Presidents
scan’t do that, so I'm stuck
*with a lot of papers now. that
T've got to find a way to give.
away or otherwise my heirs
will have'a terrible time try=

. things people are. going to |
' want to buy. . B 5

dent, may I suggest that you
may have misspoke yourself
when you said that you as-
sumed Haldeman ~and Ehr-

until .proven mnot guilty. A.
Yes, I certainly did, if I said

Whether .. those ~
amounts are correct or not .

that. Thank ‘you for correct-
dng me;- T U nE ol s

ridger ‘in Oak. Ridge, Tenn.
Senator Mark Hatfield™ said

mand so much of a President, !

we ask him to play so many’| .

roles that no man" can hold |

that kind of ~responsibility | : that those who owned stocks’

without having to share that

=N

ing: to pay" the ‘taxes on. |

-Mr. ident, Mr. Presi- | DO ne nlp. I-
- Mr. President, P P Iy vise 9% aiv.oftice and ih_ej
., other as ‘@ residence — and

lichman are considered guilty |

- Q—Smyset Trém The Oak: |-

t got to take the heat for all

- question. . They

. Florida—in which I have t#o

. of property. .

—

recently that we don’t de- |..

3

you lose you're always criti-
cized for running your own
Campaign. . = =
Taking the Heat

But my point is, Senator
Hatfield is. correct. Whether
you're a Senator or a Con-
gressman, you're sometimes
very busy. You don’t watch {
these. things. When you’re !
President you don’t. watch |
them as closely as you might,

And on that I say if mis-
takes are made, however, I'm
not blaming the people down
below. he man at the top’s

of them. ) g

Let me just respond, if I
could, sir, befare going to
your question—I'll turn left
and then come back_to the
right—I don’t want to tilt
either way at the moment, as
you can be sure.

Since . the question was

' raised a moment ago about

my tax payments,'T noted in
some editorials, and perhaps
in some ‘commentaries. ‘on
television, a very reasonabl
said, you
know, how is it that Presi-|
dent Nixon could have a very:
heavy investnient in a fine!
piece- of property in San Cle!
‘mente ‘and a_big investment]
in a piece of property* id

houses, one which I primari-

also an investment-in whae
wds my ‘mother’s home-—not!
a very much of a place, but"I7
‘do own it—those three piece§&
"1 want to staté first, that's1
all ' have. I am the first?
President sincé ‘Harry Truss
man who hasn’t oi’vned"ar‘iy‘?

“stocks since ever I've beend s

President; I'm the first orie/|
‘who has not had "a blindj
trust since Harry Truman. ~~A
"NOW that' doesn’t prove

-or had blind trusts did any=!

e O : T : e Lz
responsibility with alf Ameri: - thing wrong. ‘But I felt that}
cans. To what extent do you |- in the Presidency it was im=:

sibly how something ™ like
Watergate can occur?

A. Well, I could stand here
before this audience and
make all kinds of excuses, |

think that this explains pos- j :

and most of you probably o

would understand, because -

you’re busy also. Sevénty-two

was a very busy year for me.

It was a year when we had

the visit to China. It was a

. year when we had the visit

. to Moscow. And the first lim-
itéd test ban—limited nuclear
ban on defensive weapons,
you Tecall, as well as some
other very significant events.,
It was a year, too, when we
had the very difficult ‘déci-
sibns on Mdy 8, the bombing
and mining of Haiphong, and
then the negotiations. And
then, in December, of course,
the very, very difficult, per-
haps the most difficult’ deci-
sion I made of the December
bombing which did lead to
the breakthrough and the un-
easy peace—buit it is peace—
with all the Americans home;
all of our P.O.W.’s home, and
peace at least for a while, in
that period. !

Now during that period of
time, frankly, I didn’t man-
age to campaign, I didn’t run
the campaign. People around
me didn’t bring things tp me
that they ‘probably should
have, because I was, frankly,

just too busy trying to do the |

nation’s business
politics. g

My advice to all n&iv poli-
ticians, incidentally, is always
run your own.campaigns, I
‘used to run mine,. and I.was
always criticized for it be-
cause, you know, whenever

to rum the

portant, to have no question
about’ the President’s pér-|
sonal finances. = = T "]
* And I thought real estate’!
Wwas the best place to putit.’
-+ Questioned By Writers aj
" But then the ‘question wasd
raiséd by good editorial writ=|
ers, and I want to respondii

- to it, because some of yous
- might be too ‘polite to ask'|
" such an embarrassing qiies

- tion. You said, now Mr. Pres-3
‘ident you: earned $800,0001
when you were President.:™

- Obviously" you: paid at least

half that much or could have=>
-'paid half that rhuch in taxes;
or a gréat ‘deal of it, how:
‘could you possibly have ‘had:i
the money, where did you get ~
it? And then of course over-
- riding all of that, or the story*"
to the effect that I have avi
. million dollars in campaign:=
funds which was ~broadly.s

: printed throughout this coun=.

try with retractions not quite.
getting quite as much play as
the printing of the first and

! particularly not on television. |

* The

newspapers did“ much
better than television in that |
respect,-I should point out> ¥

And second, they said, how .|
was it that as far as this'
money is concerned, how is'
it possible for you to hdve !
this kind of investment whes-|
all you earned was $800,000;:
as President, s

Well, I should point out I
wasi'L @ pauper when 1 De- :
came Prosident. I'wasn't védy!
rich, as Presidents go. But:
you see, when the eight years |
that I-was out of office .—:!

— when I left office after four

- President, I.decided to clean:

to you, these figures I'd lika,
you to have — not today —.
but I'll have it in a few days,

years as a Congressman, tywa,
years as a. Senator-and eigh..
years at §45,000 a year as,
Vice President,. and after
stories had been written, pac-,
ticularly in The Washington,
Post, to the effect that the’
President had - purchased_ a.
mansion in Wesley Heights,
and. people wondered whera;
the money. came, you know
what my net worth was?.
$47,000 total. @ - . -

71958 Car - nem

After 14 years of Govern-
ment service and a 1958
Oldsmobile that needed: ai’
overhaul. ' . T

-Now, I have no complaints.’
In the next eight years T-
made a lot of money. I made*
$250,000 from a book, and.
the serial rights, which many|
of you were good.enough {G
purchase also. . o

In the practicé of law, and |

- I'm not claiming I was worth
it; but apparently: former Vice .
Presidents or Presidents are+
worth. a_great-deal to law,
firms, and I did ‘work pretty.
hard, but also in that period,
I. earned between $100,000
and $250,000- every year, so
that when I, in 1968, decided;
to -become a candidate .for,

the deck -and- to put everys|
‘thing in real'estate.. . "L
:T 'sold alf: my stoek for.
$300,000: That’s all I,owned;
I sold my apartment in New:;
York for $300,000. I'm usings:
rough figures here. And I had ;
$100,000 coming-to me from:
the ‘law: firm.  And so thatls.
where the money came from,
.'Let me just say this.- And:
I want to say this to the tele- |
vision audience. I made my
mistakes, but in all of my’
years ‘of public Jife I have"
never profited, never profited’
from public - service. Tve
earned every cent. = | x
And in all of my years in’
-public 'life I have never ob+,
structed justice. And I think)
- too, that I can say that in
my yeats of public life that.
1 welcome this kind of ex=

B

- amination ~because peoplé:

have got to know whether
or not their President is &
crook. Well I’m not a crook:
Tve earned évertyhing I've
got. S Bt

Q. Mr. President, -Hatry

Rosenthal of The Washinigs
ton Post. Sir, there have been.

reports that the Secret Serv:
ice " was asked at your “dp
rection . or authorization- tg
tap the telephone of your
brpther, Donald Nixon. Is
this true, sir, and if- sb,
.A. That, of course, is a
question that has been comi-
mented upon before; it will
not take long to respond to
it. The Secret Service did
maintain a surveillance. They
did so for security reasons,
and I will not go beyond that.
They were very good reasons,
and my brother was aware ot
it. ' :
. ﬂ_And may I say, too, to my
friend from The Washington
Post, I like your sport page. .
3Q. Thank you, Mr. Presi- :
dent. A. Be sure Povich isn't
paid too much for what I just
said then. Go ahead.
.9, Sir, E@ward Miller, Al-

lentown, Pa. Was your
R R A m A e T et - >
SaClall wrar € LCIOLE Ul atwed
tRha fack of tha ouevoillngees

A Before or after the fact?
Q_. Yes. A. He was aware
during the fact, because he

" first just to 'put it all out |asked about it and he was:|
and T'll give you a paper ons/ told about it, and he approved

this — we'll:send it .around of7it. ‘He knew why it was i
§ ) TS NS S Ty Ry b & b e
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iveitiance when somebody
knows about it? '
A, Do=s it make any sense?
inly. The surveillance
i what others who
e trying to get him per-
improper influ-
forth might be
particularly any-
who might be in a for-
eign couniry. , 4
Q. Is some of this full
that you say you can't
now bzcause of national

to. Congressmen or anyonea
else? Wiil this story come
out in the next few weeks as
you present more of the
facts? .
_A. Yes. As a matter of
fact, I should tell all of the
editors that — and I don’t
wang to leave any implica-
tion that you have not tried
to publish as much as you
could; you've just go so much
Toom in your newspapers.
But I do want you to know
that—well, since you haven’t
raised some of these sub-
jects, I'll raise them myself.
“1.T.T., how do we raise the
price of milk—I wish some-
body’s ask me that one. And
who else wanted it raised.
‘What about the situation
with regard to the $1-million
secret stock portfolios that
you have. A few -of those
things.- I think all of those
things need to be answered,.
and answered effectively.
And I think the best way to
answer them—twofold: one,
ebviously through the medi-'
um of a televised conference
like this. . s

"9 Want the Facts Out

Bu two, through sending @ -
e . L the members of my staff who

to the editors of the nation’s |
pewspapers—all . 10,000 of |
them—the facts, and I trust |
that you will use them. |
.~And if you believe them, |-
but I don’t mean—what I'!
mean, I'm not suggesting that
you wouldn’t believe them.
But if you feel you need more
information, write to me and
Il give it to you. I want tha
facts out, because the facts °
will prove that the President |
is telling the truth. i
~.Now we go to the—TI think i
we go to the back this time. ;
. Q. Mr. President, John Fin- |
nregan, Si.  Paul Dispatch, |
Pioneer Press. I know the :
Watergate situation has raised |
questions of executive priv-
ilege, and a recent Gallup !
Poll indicated that 62 per cent

of the American people will
favor a confidential news |
source law if adopted by Con-
gress. There is a two-tiered |
law now before the Judiciary !
Committee which would pro-
vide an ahbosolute privilege in
case of investigative or
grand jury hearings and a i
qualified shield in case of a
civil or criminal case. If such
2 law were passed, would |
you sign it or veto it? |
_.A. Well, vyou're talking
2bout shield laws in general,
are you not? _

Q. Yes: - i

A. Well, my  attitucdy, to-
ward the shield laws, briefly,
is this: First, I share the ob-
jective. I believe that retport-
ers, if you're going to have
2 free
some kind of a shield. Sec-
ond, -except of course if |
they're involvatd in crim-
inal activities, and then I
don't inink rne shield :
that even you, that any of .
you sugzested would cover
those. As I understand, if

there are criminal activities
involved in by a . reporter,

laws

press, ought to have '

- Attorney General, Mr. Saxby,

_ low this practice.

I think. .

“of course voluntarily waived

i .would first have had a con- °

| 3 .
: obviously a shield law canr |
S protect him.

The second point, how-
ever, has to do with the par}
ticular legisiation and how
it reaches my desk. And I'll

it’s proper. If it's proper, I'll
sign it

But I think that a shield
law .which would have the
effect of providing to report-
ers what the general public
felt, after they had a chance
to consider it all, pravided
for them privileges that went
beyond what -the general
public felt was in the na-
tional interest, then 1 would
have to take a second look.

Now, incidentally, T should
point out, too, that I followed
your editorials, not yours in
just the St. Paul paper, but
others around the country,
and the newspapers in this .
country are not united on
this.

So, on the shield law, 'm
not trying to duck the ques-_
tion. It’s an open question.
But I will answer one thing
I think is'important. The new-

under my directions, will fol-

Any Federal case involving
a reporter will not be brought
unless it comes expressly to
the Attorney General and he
approves it. Because that way
that’s a pretty -good shield,

" Q. May 1. ask one other
question sir? A, Sure. .
Q. Do you feel that .the
executive privilege is abso-
lute. :
A. -1 -of course don't. I
have waived executive nriv-
ilege with regard to all- of

have any knowledge of or.
who have any charges against
have been made against in
the Watergate matter. 1 have

privilege with regard to turn: |
ing -over the tapes and so
forth. Let me point out, it
was voluntary on my part
and deliberately so to avoid
a2 '~ precedent that might
destroy the principle of con-
fidentiality for future Presi-
dents, which , is terribly
important. ] :
Jefferson Rule

If it had gone to Supreme
Court—and I know many of |
my friends argued, why not !
carry. it to the Supreme Court |
and let them decide it—that |

frontation with the Supreme |
Court between the Supreme '
Court and the President, and |
second, it would have estab- |
lished very possibly a prece- '
dent, a precedent breaking '
down constitutionality that |
would plague future "Presi- .
dencies, not just Presidents. '
I could just say in that re-
spect, too, that I referfed to
what T call the Jefferson rule.
It is the rule, T think, that we |
should * generally follow, a |
President should follow, with '
the courts when they want |
information ‘and a President :
should also follow with com-
mittees of Congress when
they want information in his |
personal files. . !
" Jefferson; as you know,
in that very, very famous
case - had" correspondence
“which, it was felt, might bear
upon the guilt or innocence |
of Aaron Burr. Chief Justice | .
Marsiall, siliitg as> « lial;
judge, said that—held that;
Jefefrson as President had to:
turn over the correspondence.
Jefferson refused.

What he did was to turn

|
|
i
!

over a summary of the cor-

respondence — all that he |

considered was proper to be

turned over for the purposes

1| of the trial—and then Mar-
have to take a lok at it |i-

i when it gets there to see if ;’

shall ‘sitting as Chief Justice
ruled for the President. Now
why did Jefferson do that?

Jefferson didn’t do that to

protect Jefferson. He did that !

to protect the Presidency.
And that’s exactly what I
‘will do in these cases. It
isn’t for the purpose of pro-
tecting the President. It is.
for the purpose of seeing
that the Presidency, where
great decisions have to be
made and great decisions
can't be made unless there
is very free flow of conver-
sation and that means confi-
dentiality—I have a respon-
Isibility to protect the Presi-
dency. 3 "

At the same time I will do
everything I can to cooperate
where there is a need for
Presidential participation.

Ill come to you next,
sorry. 5 v
Q. Mr. President, Murray
Light of the Miami News.
The American people, sir, are
very interested in one sub-
ject other than Watergate. Is
gas rationing imminent? A, I
didn’t hear the. ‘last, I'm
sorry. f

Q. Is gas rationing immi-
nent? )
A. Tll tell you a - little

about my career that I didn’t
put in my campaign folders
when I ran for Congress in
1946. 1 was once in O.P.A,
and I was in tire rationing, I
.Suppose they put me in tire
rationing—this is just before
I went into the service, I was
waiting for my service call, '

because I had" worked in a.

1
service station. But I didn’t |
anything about tire rationing, -
and neither did the man
above me who I don’t think
had ever been in a service .
station; but we put out the |

- rationing regulations on tires, |

and we were spare as we |
could be. : |

But also I found that if |
you get a bunch of govern-
ment bureaucrats and

have to have thousands of |

them, making decisions with

in ,
order to. have rationing you’d ;.

regard to who is going to get |

this much, this much, this
much, and rationing — if
you’re going to try to do that
in peach time when you do
not have what we had in war

time—you know support for |

entitled to an A.
Then you were sort of dis-

_ you know—don’t us¢ a C ra- .
tion card when you’re only ‘;

)

loyal or something, or unpat-
riotic. If you do not have that

behind it, I can assure you 5

that a rationing system in
peacetime run by a group of
well-intentioned — but being
bureaucrats as they are, gain-
ing and feeling their power
—would be something that
the American people would
resent verv, very much.
Now what we have asked
the Congress for is a contin-
gency plan in the event that
rationing becomes necessary.
But in the meatime, let me

tell you, our goal is to make '
® not necessary. I'm not go- !

ing to pledge to this audience,
and I'm not going to pledge
to the television audience
that rationing may never,

* come. If you have another:!

war in the Mideast, if you
have a complaete cutoff and,

not a resumptiion of the 0w

of oil from the Mideast, or
some other disaster occurs,
rationing may come.

. But if, on the other hand;

tRe things that I rccommenq-.}

© ed in my messags of a’ week’!

ago for immediate action—;
if the voluntary cooperation-|
of keeping. the speed down }
to 50 miles an hour—and I'm |
going to talk to the Govern-

ors about that on Tuesday in |
Memphis,

thing. , S
No Backup Plane

If we cut back on the air-
erafts  flights —and  we've
done that. And for example,
I came down here in a planz
here today—Air Force One—
I asked them if I couldn’t
take the Jetstar. They said,
no, it doesn’t have communi-
cations. So I've had to take
the big plane. But,we did
. one thing that save- half.the
cost. We - didn’t-;have the
_backup plane. The Secret
Service didn’t like it, com-
munications didn't like it,.
but I don’t need a backup
plane. If this one goes down,
it goes'down—and then they
don’t have to impeach.
© Q. Mr.: President, Larry’
Allison from the Long Beach, i
Calif., Independent Press
Telegram. Back to Water-
- gate: former Attorney Gene-
- ral John Mitchell has' testi-
fied that the reason he did
.not give you details on the
Watergate problems was
"~ that you did not ask hjm. -
~. Now I -realize that you.
were very busy at that fime,
. as you said, but there were
. reports in newspapers that .
linked people very high on
your staff with the Water- -
" gate -problems. Could you !
_ tell us, sir, why you did not |
ask Mr. Mitchell what  he’]
knew? Al SRy
* A. For the very simple rea-
. son that whenI talked to Mr.
Mitchell and I saw him often -
. in that period that I' had

irging that every :
state do exactly the. .same "}

every reason to believe that
if he were.invo!ved, if he had '
-any -information to convey, '
‘he would tell.me. =
I thought that he would. |
. As a matter of fact. when I :
called him cn the telephone,.’
what did* he- say? He ex- !
" pressed chagrin that any-
thing like that could have !
happened in his organization.
Looking back, maybe ‘I
should have asked him. But
.the reason I didn’t is that I -
- expected him to tell me. And
he had every opportunity to--
and decided that he wouldn’t,

' apparently. E

At least, now that doesn’t °
mean to-tell me that he was
invelved, because, you under- -
stand that’s- still a matter :
that’s open. The- qustion is
_whether he could have told
me about other people that
might be involved ‘or he had
information where members
of my staff did not have in-
formation. Yes, sir. . #

Q. 'm Joe Shogquist of The
Milwaukee Journal. Why
didn’t the Administration an-
ticipate the energy crisis sev-
eral years ago, formuiate a
positive -action plan to do
something about it?
A, You walked
there. And that's-a great
paper, incidentally, as is The
MilwauKee Sentinel. But,
anyway, seriously, vou see,*
what happened was that I
sent the first energy message °
ever sent to the Congress.
[ sent it to the Congress
over 'wo yzars ago. [ saw
this thing coming any you
know why I saw it coming?

into one -

-

Q

£

~
.\"

o



" people, go to India or go to
seme of the countries in
Latin America or upper Bra-
zii, eic. ect. But generally, )
as tnz world gets richer,
there is more air-condition-

L) o
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auge of the Mid-East
Alaska pipeiine and
but " because this
vill all of its problems
iting riches. Oh,-1 don’t
mean there aren’t a lot of
unzry people in, not only

= ca, too many here,
ou want to see hungry

ere is more -need for
and there's more need

power
for enzrgy.- And that's why
1 sant the message two years
' agn. And asked at that time .
Sthat) ongress consider
a program so that the United
S:ates should become self-
sufficient in energy.
All right.,I followetd that

© up this year in April before
- we even knew there might

be, or had "any idea of, a

- Mideast crisis, which made-

a serious problem a serious

- crisis. I asked them for seven

W i S

pisces of .legislation to
ceal with energy. .One has
reached my desk — the
Alaska pipeline. 1 signed it.

The other six I hope they.- -

. act -on before they go home

. ‘the

warned about
- Congress did not act, even,
i though
- ago.

for Chrristmas.

“.Now. I'm not saying here
the Congress is to blame,
President should have
done something. What I do
it and the

we warned two years
). Thz President warned
ia April

- not act.

: Tt

9

—

i
v

3

Cengrass to get away from
some of these other diver-
siens, if they have time, and
on to this energy crisis.
Interest in Rationing
me just—since that
2 has come up, I'would
in point out, though, how
should react, because the
tion about rationing is
that your average reader
ing to be interested in.
mezn; I'm interested in it;
05; B
1
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f\x'ent through it. The
cz- poals, and all that sort of
i

car poo! I'm sure. Taxicabs

e

gzt on2 unless five of you
rcde in one, remember? We
don’t want that.

But 1f we look at this en-

ergy crisis as simply the crisis .

of this year, we could not
make a2 greater mistake. If

. there’d never been a Mideast,

war, there would have been;
an enargv crisis eventually. -
- That is why I have set as
goal for the American peo-
‘2 and I trust all of you will

v 19802 Why not 1976?
in checking with the
, I find that it will
possible doing every-
12t we can do to be-

the Congress co-
if the nation co-

Op this nation in 1980
can all the energy we
need.

‘D

1ust briefly tell you
cooperation

We have half
in the world. And
vl iavie coaversions to
0 0il. Why? Because
coz! is not a clean fuel.
Coa!l can be made a clean
vel. Coal can be mined in a
} does not despoil

tve. I'm sure that
f the environmen-

.The: Congress did .

e ST - resources,
And now it’s timé for the

A few of you appear
nough to rem=mber a ’

4’.) .
talists—1 am an environ-
mentalist along with anybody
who cares about the goods
for our children—will object.
But we've got to get that
coal out of the ground and
we have to develop the shale
‘oil, for example, that exists
in Colorado a2nd some of the
Western states.

That will solve part of the
problem.  And second, you
have to deregulate natural
gas. Some protection for the
consumer, yes. But you've got
wells in Louisiana and other
places that are shut down
and many that are not being
explored bescause  the price
is held -at a price too low to
make the explorer have a
profit. And therefore he isn’t
going to do it. i

And natural gas, as you
know, is one of the cleanest
fuels we can possibly have.
And then third, the most ex-

citing of ali—nuclear power.

Now, don’t write an edi-.
going' to catch it from your
torial on this. You're really .

‘readers if you do, because it

scares people. Nuclear power.
They think of the bomb. They
think of of the possibilityt-
hat one of them is going to
blow up. S
My house in San Clemente
is just 12. miles from the:
Southern California Edison
Company’s nuclear power -
plant. It’s safe. It produces

-good power. It's clean power.

And the United States which

first found the secret of the

atem is behind where it
ought to be in the develop-
ment of nuclear power. If we
go out in developing our coal
resources, our natural gas
as well as of
course .our oil from Alaska

" 'which will provide one-third -

—I said incorrectly the other
day in talking to a group not
one-third of all of our oil
needs, but one-third of all of
our oil imports— and if we

“add to that nuclear power,

the United States in 1980 can
be self-sufficient. ;
Just closing that off, let
me tell you why that’s so
terribly important. Arahs?
They say well the Arabs may
be very irrational and we
shouldn’t depend on them
anyway. Let me tell you,
when you’re in trouble, don’t ’
deoerlxd on anybody but your-

. self.
n Washington—you, couldn’t -

“Venezuela? What’s going
to happen in Venezuela. They
send us a lot of oil, but they
could change their minds
under a radical government,
and they could get one one
day. I don’t think so, but
thegileouldl« ¢ FELaii e
.- What  about Canada, . our
great friends to the north?
A lot of Canadians are listen-
ing here. But I can tell you
your present Minister of the
Interior or whoever is in
charge of oil, he’s .a .tough
guy, and they drive hard bar-

gains, and I guess we would -

too if we were Canadians.

My point is, the United
States of America, as the
greatest industry power of
the world with 7 per cent of
the world’s people and using
30 per-cent of the world’s
energy, shouldn’t have to de-
pend on any other country
for energy that provides our
jobs and our transportations
and our ‘light and our heat.
We . can become self-suf-
ficient. N

This is a great project and
I'm going to push it,

And I guess we wuuld, ivo,
if we were Canadians. My
point is, the United States of
America, as the greatest in-
dustrial power of the world,
with 7 per cent of the world’s

- .people, and usinz 30 per cent.

of the world’s enerov .

‘Senators

‘changes.

shouldn’t have to depend on
any other country for enerzy
that, provides our jobs and
our transportations and our
light and our heat. We can
become self-suficient. This is
a great project and I'm going
to push it. :

Q. Mr. President, I'm John-
Chanley. of the Kansas City
Times. Not being a member
of the Washington press
corps, I'm not going to ask
tire, buf I'm goinz to ask
you when you're going to re-
you when you do leave the
White . House, what do you
plan to do? - . 2

A. I think it depends on"
when I leave! No, seriously,
I know that this group has
asked very good questions
and very appropriate ones, I
was hoping you’d ask me

- about the milk. Would you

mind asking me about the
milk? | w

You will? Fine. IIl answer
this, and then I'll go to the
milk in the back. e

As far as retirement, at.
that time I understand I will
be 63 years of age. And I'm

relatively healthy at the pres- -

ent time—I don’t know how
healthy I'll be then. Among
the things I will not do: I
will not practice law; I'won't
g0 on any board of directors.

Ill tell you, after being
President you never want to
sit at any other end of the
table. And being a board of
directors—being on the board
of directors, it pays well, but

“it’s rather boring. That’s at
least what I found when I

was Vice Presidént. Not out
of any conceit or anything,
it’s just the fact board of di-
rectors are fine, but I don’t

" think for former Presidents.

Writing, Not Speaking

" What I probably will do is
to do a little writing, 1 will
not do any speaking, I've
made enough speeches in a
vear to last most people for.
a lifetime, particularly: my
audiences. i

nd so under the circum-
stanAces, what I probably
will do will be do some
wtiting and perhaps contrib-

‘ute to bettering the political

process. Just let me say this:

Neither party is without fault

in the campaign of 1972,

‘Quite of bit of violence on

the other side. I never spoke-

-any place without getting a .
- pretty good working over.

Neither party was without
fault with regard to the fi-
nancing. They raised 336-mil-
lion, and -some of that, like’

_some of ours, came from

corporate sources and was
illegal because the law had
been changed and apparent-
ly people didn’t know it, and
as far as Congressmen and
are  concerned,
they’ll all tell you that with

-the new laws and so forth

there ought to be some

I think that if we can’t get
the Congress to act on the
proposal I gave to them six

months ago, to provide a’

‘commission to set up new
- rules for campaign contribu-

tions limiting them, new rules
for © campaign procedures,

- then after I leave office I'm

going to work for that, be-
cause I don't want to be re-
membered as the man who
maybe brought peace for the
first time in 12 years, who
opened to China, who opened
to Russiz, maybe avoided a
war it tile iideast, maybe if
we can continue it, got un-
employment down for the
first time in 13 years, for
the first time in peace time,
it's down at 4.5 per cent,

-.. It was never at that level,_

never below 5 nar cont in

 would like to ask you about

-minute commitment of time.

- before us this evening and
- we thank you. A. PlI tell you-

-milk case question—and this -

" are getting a bad rap about

-Pete ePterson, and 4ll the:

_basically, this. :

. amounts,

the sixties, any tima in the
sixties—neither the Kennedy
nor the Johnson Administra-
tion, except during the war
years. -
I want to be remerbered,
I would trust, as a President
that did his best to bring
peace, and also did- his ‘best
to bring a degree of prosper-
ity, perhaps a contribution
in the energy field, in the
environmental field, but also
one who did his best, when
his own campaign got out of
hand, to do everything pos-
sible to'see that other cam- fJ
i
1

paigns didn’t get out of hand-

in the future. :
Now we'll got to the mitk

case. : .

Q. Mr. President, APME.
the milk case, but our 60-

has run out. AP.M.E. ap-
preciates your- appearance

the time.. Television’s keep-
ing me on just a minute yet,
. Q. Thank you. Thank you:

A. I’s a lousy movie any-
way tonight. The reason the

will be the one that I'll take—
ought to be answered is that
just some awful nice people

it. Now I'm not referring
about myself, 'm referring
about people 'in Administra-
tion. They’ve had John Con- -
nally down. They’ve run him
around the track. And they’ve .
had—I guess they’re going to .|
have Cliff Hardin down, and

rest, and the whole charga is,

That this Administration in
1971 raised the support price {
for milk as a quid. pro quo |
for a promise by the milk 1
producers that they would '
contribute *  substantial !
anywhere from
$100,000 to $2-million to $10--
million to our campaign. Now -
that is just not trua.

Pll tell you how it- hap-
pened, I was there. Cliff Har-
den in the spring of that
year. came in and.said, “The
milk support prices are high .
enough.” Isaid, “Al right,
Cliff, that’s your recommen-
dation to the Department. of-
Agriculture?” He said, “yes.” :

Within three weeks after :
he made that announcement, °
Congress put a gun to our
head. Let me tell you what
it was. Republicans? Uh-uh.
A hundred and two members
of Congress signed a petition
demanding not 85 per cent
of parity, but a 90 per cent
support price. And 28 mem-
bers of the Senate—most .of
them Democrats, including .
Senator McGovern — signad
the petition. demanding—a
petition or signed the bill—
which would have made the
milk support price betwee
85 and 90 per cent. <o F

So I talked to my legis-
“Look here, what I'm con-
cerned about, what 'm con- .
cerned about is what people
pay for that milk, and I don’t
want to have that 'price
jigged up here if we can keep
it and get the supply with the
present support price.” - .

You 'know what I was
told? They said, with the
kind of heat that we're get-
ting from the Congress there
is no way that you're not
going to get on your desk a
bili—and they'll be able to
ovecride your veto—that wili
raise the support price prob-
ably to 90 per cent.

So we said 85 per cent,
and that’s why it was done.
Arnd that’s the truth. ;

Well, thank you very.
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.uch, gentlemen; I guess that’s-
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